UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 94-20005 & 94-20006

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellant,

VERSUS

GEORGE WOODROW FLANAGAN and SHANNON RAY Kl KER,

Def endant s- Appel | ees.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Southern District of Texas

(CR-H93-164-1 & CR-H93-164-2)

(January 9, 1995)
Bef ore REAVLEY, DUHE, and PARKER, Circuit Judges.

PER CURI AM *

Ceorge Wodrow Fl anagan ("Fl anagan") and Shannon Ray Kiker
("Kiker") were convicted on their pleas of guilty to an indictnent
charging themw th conspiracy to possess with intent to distribute
Lysergic Acid Diethylamde ("LSD') and aiding and abetting in the

possession of LSD with intent to distribute in violation of 21

Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particul ar cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.



U.S.C. 8§ 841(a)(1), 841(b)(1)(A), 846 and 18 U.S.C. § 2. The
of fense date was February 25, 1993.

On Novenber 30 1993, the district court sentenced Fl anagan to
concurrent 36 nonth sentences, concurrent three-year terns of
supervised release and a $100 special assessnent. Ki ker was
sentenced to concurrent 24 nonth sentences, concurrent three year
terns of supervised release and a $100 special assessment. The
Gover nnent appeal s the sentences i nposed.

The LSD pl us the gel capsule in which it was contai ned wei ghed
28.1 grans. Based on that quantity, Flanagan's guideline range was
initially calculated by the probation departnent to be 30-37
mont hs, and Kiker's guideline range was calculated to be 24-30
nmont hs. Applying U S S.G 8§ 5GL.1, the probation departnent
concl uded that the guideline sentence for both defendants was the
statutory mandatory m ninum or 120 nont hs.

At the sentencing hearing, the district court interpreted the
amendnent to U.S.S.G 8§ 2Dl1.1 addressing the manner of cal cul ation
of the weight of LSDto affect the statutory classification of LSD
by wei ght. Over the Governnent's objection, the district court
treated each dose of LSD as equal to 0.4 ng., calculating that the
total anmount of LSD involved in the charged offense was 400 ny.
Based on that anobunt, the court found that the statutory sentencing
range was 0 to 20 years with no mandatory m ni num

DOES THE MANDATORY M NI MUM SENTENCI NG REQUI REMENT APPLY?

The governnent argues that the district court m sapplied the
sent enci ng gui del i nes by i nposi ng sentences that were | ess that the

mandat ory m ni mum The governnment acknow edges that the 1993



amendnent to U . S.S.G 8§ 2D1.1 directs sentencing courts to use a
standard wei ght for all dosages of LSD regardl ess of the wei ght of
the carrier in calculating the anmount of controll ed substances for
purposes of the Drug Quantity Table in the Guidelines. However,
they contend that the entire weight of the LSD, plus the carrier
must be used to calculate the statutory punishnent range. That is
correct.

I n cal cul ating the anount of "m xture or substance" of LSD for
t he purposes of determ ning the mandatory m ni numsent ence under 21
U S C 841(b), the weight of the carrier nedium nust be included.
Chapman v. United States, 500 U. S. 453, 460-62, 111 S.C. 1919, 114
L. Ed. 2d 524 (1991). The policy statenent to 2D1. 1(c) provi des that
t he new approach to cal cul ating the anount of LSD does not override
the applicability of the Chapman "m xture or substance" rule for
t he purpose of applyi ng any mandat ory m ni numsent ence under § 841.
We hold that the anpbunt of LSD nust be calculated according to
Chapman, rather that applying the new guideline nethod of
calculation. United States v. Pardue, __ F.2d __ (No. 94-30208,
5th CGr., Qctober 17, 1994).

We VACATE the sentences inposed on Flanagan and Ki ker, and
REMAND f or resentencing.



